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Share price since 2003 
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1 as a percentage of net sales 
2 as a percentage of the balance sheet total 
3 According to the Board of Directors’ request to the General Meeting of April 7, 2009;
 CHF 0.10 of these are anniversary dividend

Group (CHF 000 or as indicated) 2008 % 2007 %
Net sales 318 030 320 912
Gross profit 94 958 29.91 78 905 24.61

Operating profit (EBITDA) 41 272 13.01 32 389 10.11

Operating profit (EBIT) 28 059 8.81 22 994 7.21

Net profit 22 895 7.21 18 879 5.91

     
Total assets 104 453 108 922
Net cash & cash equivalents 23 936 19 438
Shareholders’ equity 72 060 69.02 61 016 56.02

     
Net cash from operating activities 30 833 32 860
Investments in property, plant & equipment and intangible assets 11 222 14 898
   
Number of full-time employees as of December 31 542 453
Number of shops as of December 31 131 127
     
Figures per security (CHF or as indicated)
Shares outstanding at year end (pieces) 35 772 996 35 772 996
Earnings per share(undiluted/diluted) 0.64 0.53
Net assets per share 2.01 1.71
Dividend payout per share3 0.43 0.33
Share price (highest/lowest) 7.85/6.10 8.40/6.90
Share price as of December 31 6.74 7.70



Events in 2008

Expansion of the business customer segment 
With its takeover of the leading Orange business partner Tojaco Trading GmbH, mobilezone has 
made a commitment to expansion in the segment business customers. Business know-how, a suc-
cessful and highly motivated team of customer service representatives, and business synergies will 
strengthen  mobilezone’s market position.

Introducing the iPhone 
As expected, the long and eagerly awaited Apple iPhone quickly became the sales hit of the year. On 
its first sales day mobilezone’s shops opened as early as 6:30 am – and in next to no time the new 
mobile telephone with the legendary design was sold out. The iPhone has become the trendsetter 
for a completely new user interface, the touch screen, and has been delighting customers with all 
sorts of technical innovations, such as high-speed Internet, GPS, and video. 

New role as soccer sponsor 
mobilezone is taking advantage of the broad impact of championship soccer. With its perimeter 
advertising, mobilezone now has a presence in all stadiums of the Axpo Super League Clubs, and 
with its advertising on uniforms mobilezone has become the main sponsor of the Grasshoppers in 
the Super League. 

15 apprentices completed training in sales 
For the first time mobilezone has trained 15 apprentices as retail salespeople specializing in consu-
mer electronics. In the future, these sales apprenticeships will be expanded all across Switzerland.  

Coming in 9th for the 2008 Cash Employer Award 
Every year Cash, in cooperation with GfK Trustmark AG, offers the Employer Award. A total of 45,000 
employees filled out questionnaires to evaluate the quality of 81 companies. The 25 best employers 
received recognition, and mobilezone is happy to have placed among the Top Ten. The company will 
closely analyze the results so as to be able to continue to increase its employees’ satisfaction.

New shop in the Westside shopping center in Bern 
At another excellent location – in Bern’s adventure and shopping center Westside – that’s where mo-
bilezone has opened is newest shop. Westside means shopping, leisure, and unique architecture. In 
total, mobilezone now has 131 locations all across Switzerland.
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2 Overview • Brief profile

The largest independent Swiss telecom 
specialist. Established in 1999, mobile-
zone is now Switzerland’s leading and 
sole independent provider of telecom 
services and products for mobile and 
fixed-net telephony. The company has 
more than 500 employees who advise 
retail and business customers regar-
ding the services and offers of all net 
operators (Orange, Sunrise, and Swiss-
com) and offer the largest selection of 
mobile phones in shops all across the 
country. 









6 Overview • Report to Shareholders 

Best annual results in the 
company’s history

Dear Shareholders,

mobilezone has every reason to celebrate: Fiscal year 2008 concluded with a record result, impres-
sively continuing our company’s decade-long success. In 1999 Ruedi Baer and Martin Lehmann, 
in a pioneering step, implemented their vision of a telecom specialist independent of network ope-
rators and device manufacturers. Success was not long in coming: with 35 shops, 150 employees, 
sales of CHF 63 million, and 300,000 mobile phones sold, their first year in business exceeded all 
expectations – and thus became the foundation for mobilezone’s ten-year success. For example, 
the company sold a total of 7 million mobile phones in its first ten years and concluded 3.4 million 
subscription contracts for mobile phones.

In 2008 mobilezone was again able to further expand its excellent market position. The year conclu-
ded with the best result in the company’s history: all operating margins, from contribution margin to 
group profit were increased significantly. Net sales remained stable at CHF 318.0 million compared 
to the previous year (CHF 320.9 million). The company’s wholesale activities were discontinued at 
mid-year.  After correcting for the reduction in wholesale revenue in the amount of CHF 25.4 million, 
the company achieved an increase in total 2008 sales of 7.6 percent. Indeed, group profit grew by 
as much as 21.3 percent and totaled CHF 22.9 million. The EBITDA result grew by 27.4 percent and 
amounted to CHF 41.3 million, the operating result EBIT rose by 22.0 percent to CHF 28.1 million.  In 
total, 457,000 (2007: 440,000) mobile phone contracts were concluded or renewed for the network 
operators Orange, Sunrise, Swisscom, Tele2, and mobilezone. 

mobilezone is committed to having a local presence near its customers and thus to the steady ex-
pansion of its network of shops throughout all of Switzerland. By the end of 2008 mobilezone had a 
presence in 131 location, the newest shops were opened in the Westside shopping center in Bern 
and on the Rue de la Confédération in Geneva. In addition to the density of the shop network, it 
is essential to have qualified employees who are dedicated and competent in advising customers. 
Independence, customer focus, and collaboration on a partnership basis with all network operators 
and device manufacturers – these are the three essential success factors mobilezone has always 
relied on, and it will continue to set great store by them in the future.

Now that Swisscom has taken over “The Phone House,” the Swiss company of Europe’s largest 
seller of mobile phones, mobilezone is the only major independent telecom specialist with shops all 
across Switzerland. It is only mobilezone’s complete independence of all network operators and de-
vice manufacturers that makes it possible for the company’s retail and business clients to compare 
all prices, services, and products in one place. In addition to the retail segment, mobilezone also 
invested in activities for business clients. With the takeover of Tojaco Trading GmbH mobilezone 
was able to take a significant step forward in the business client segment in 2008.









10 Business segment reports • Trade

Retail customers
Market environment
As a result of the takeover of “The Phone House” in the second quarter of 2008, Swisscom has 
been able to further strengthen its leading market position. At the same time, mobilezone is now the 
only significant independent telecom specialist with a network of shops throughout Switzerland and 
the most important sales partner for all network operators. The fact that Europe’s largest seller of 
mobile telephones has withdrawn from Switzerland underlines mobilezone’s strong market position. 
Tele2 entered the mobile telephone market in September 2007 as the fourth provider in the market, 
triggering expectations of a ruthless price war. However, customers could enjoy the attractive price-
performance ratio only briefly because Tele2 left the Swiss market in June. 

Subscription and prepaid business 
In 2008, mobilezone concluded or renewed 457,000 mobile phone subscriptions, which corres-
ponds to a slight growth of 3.9 percent. Despite the withdrawal of Tele2, the volume of contracts 
concluded held steady at a high level. Thus, mobilezone could again assert its strong position 
behind Swisscom, and with its high number of contracts it is unquestionably Switzerland’s leading 
independent provider.

Technical innovations by the manufacturers, the opening of important shops, and the generally sta-
ble mobile phone market all contributed to the excellent operating results with retail customers. And 
mobilezone also expanded in the B2B segment and strengthened its market position by taking over 
the leading Orange business partner, Tojaco Trading GmbH, in the first six months of the fiscal year.

The past fiscal year was the best yet 
for the trade segment. The 10th busi-
ness year was the most successful, 
both in profitability and net profit.
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MARKET SHARES TOTAL MARKET SWITZERLAND 2008 

PROVIDER SHARES WITH MOBILEZONE  

Mobile phone subscriptions total market 

Mobile phone subscriptions independent providers only

Mobile phone subscriptions 

Prepaid business Prepaid business independent providers only

Interdiscount, 
Media Markt, Fust, 
M-Electronics, 
Coop, Post
20%

Interdiscount, 
Media Markt, Fust, 
M-Electronics, 
Coop, Post
78%
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specialty
retailers 
29%
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1%
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23%
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49%

Regional specialty 
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12 Business segment reports • Trade

Products
The market launch of the Apple iPhone in summer 2008, which was a great success, showed that 
mobilezone is also the consumers’ first choice for new products. Beginning in July, the elegant 
iPhone, including accessories such as a Bluetooth headset, docking station, and protective case, 
was available in all mobilezone shops, and by the end of the year a total of 23,447 had been sold. 
Samsung, following the new trend, also adopted touch displays for its F 480 model, but market 
leader Nokia took its time in coming up with product innovations. Other innovations on the market 
include Bluewin TV, the digital TV subscription, excellent camera functions, and high-speed pro-
ducts. 

mobilezone customers benefit from the comprehensive product range of the manufacturers Apple, 
Nokia, Sony Ericsson, Samsung, Motorola, LG, HTC, and BlackBerry as well as from the most ex-
tensive range of accessories in the market. 

In collaboration with Elvia, mobilezone reintroduced the insurance product “norisk,” which has been 
in existence for years. This policy offers insurance coverage in four price categories against mobile 
phone damage, a problem particularly with the new touch screen models. Since the new market 
launch of “norisk” this insurance has been included in more than five percent of all contracts con-
cluded.

1 Nokia 51%
2 Sony Ericsson 22%
3 Samsung 16%
4 LG 3%
5 Apple 4%
6 Motorola 2%
7 Others 2%

Nokia 
6300
66 954*

Samsung 
SGH-F 480
26 645*

The «Top Ten» bestsellers among 

mobile phones: 

Nokia 
6500 Slide
57 190*

Apple 
iPhone 3G
23 447*

Sony Ericsson
W580 I
23 644*

Nokia 
6131
14 209*

Nokia 
5310 XPressMusic
15 117*

Samsung 
SGH-U 700
20 374*

Sony Ericsson
W910 I
15 161*

Samsung 
SGH-G 600
16 792*

SHARES OF BRANDS AT

MOBILEZONE* 2008

*Quantity of devices sold by mobilezone 

1

2

3

4
5 6 7

* based on quantity of devices sold
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Advertising and sponsoring 
Increasingly, mobilezone has taken advantage of the widespread appeal of popular top-class sports: 
with its perimeter advertising mobilezone has a presence at almost all games of the ice hockey Na-
tional League A as well as in all Axpo Super League football stadiums. For the first time, mobilezone 
has now become the main sponsor of the Grasshoppers in the Super League through its advertising 
on the players’ uniforms. 

Outlook
Despite the guarded economic forecasts, mobilezone moves confidently into fiscal year 2009. The 
boom in the mobile phone market is continuing, and consumers usually keep their mobile phones at 
most two years before buying a new one. Manufacturers will continue to come up with more techno-
logical innovations, thus creating a constant demand for new mobile phones. The new touch-screen 
user interface and features such as GPS, camera, E-mail, and Internet capability will continue to 
attract buyers. In addition to the sale of mobile phones, mobilezone’s main business is in concluding 
new mobile phone contracts and renewing existing ones for all Swiss network operators. mobilezone 
plans to open new shops in 2009 at additional top locations, for example, in the Stuecki shopping 
center in Basel. 



15

Market environment
In the business customer segment there are only small regional providers and no large national 
competitors. In mobilezone’s view, the B2B segment offers great potential for growth since IT, 
telephony, and ICT (Information Communication Technology) are becoming increasingly networked 
and thus are also becoming more and more complex. mobilezone offers companies of all sizes – in 
particular SMEs, which are virtually neglected by Swiss network operators – independent, compe-
tent advice as well as an attractive price-performance ratio.

Service
More and more business customers appreciate the benefit of independent telecom advice. With the 
integration of Tojaco Trading GmbH, which until then had provided services to more than 2,000 small 
businesses primarily located in eastern Switzerland, mobilezone solidified its position, gained a suc-
cessful sales team, and then added to the team so that it now has 22 business customer consultants 
(principally in German-speaking Switzerland). mobilezone offers customers comprehensive consul-
ting regarding the optimal price plan – upon customer request, mobilezone’s services can include 
delivering the hardware as well as complete customer service. Of course, business customers can 
also use the service and the product offers available in mobilezone’s shops at any time. 

Outlook
As the complexity of communications technologies will continue to increase in the future, so will the 
demand for independent and expert advice on telecommunications. Accordingly, mobilezone will 
keep its focus on growth, and for the medium term it aims to cover all of Switzerland. The goals are 
ambitious: mobilezone wants to establish the same dominant market position in this relatively new 
business segment that it holds with retail customers.

Evaluation of external partners

Analysis of requirements 

Contract management  

Rate optimization 

Support

Device warranty 

Best Business Solution 

Companies

mobilezone

Fixed-line 
and mobile 
telephony 
Devices 
E-mail 
Video 
Conferencing 
VoIP 

Mobile VPN 
Access 
WLAN 
Internet etc.

Swisscom
Sunrise
Orange
Nokia
HTC
iPhone
Skype 
BlackBerry
Sony Ericsson

Samsung
LG
Motorola
usw.

Business customers
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Opposing trends in the mobile and 
fixed-line business of the segment 
service providing. While the mobile 
business of the segment service pro-
viding has not developed in line with 
expectations, mobilezone’s fixed-line 
business has grown. This area is 
already considered an important 
additional business. 
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Fixed-line telephony
In the reporting year mobilezone was able to expand its market share in the area of fixed-line pro-
ducts (with its partner Colt Telecom SA). In 2008, net sales grew 33 percent to CHF 11.8 million. 
In the reporting year inactive customer accounts were purged from the records. Active customer 
acquisition via two company call centers in Biel and Geneva paid off: the number of active custo-
mers rose from 20,500 in the previous year to more than 23,500. Although the fixed-line telephony 
segment in general is undergoing a slight decline, it remains stable in Switzerland. 

Mobile telephony
This still relatively young business segment (with partner Orange) has not performed satisfactorily 
so far. After adjusting for more than 20,000 inactive customers records in the second half of 2008, 
the number of customers was reduced by 12,000 to 28,000. The quality of new customers and the 
margins achieved did not meet expectations. This led to high bad debt losses and consequently to 
a poor result. In the future, mobilezone will be more conservative in planning this segment’s activi-
ties and will closely scrutinize its performance on a regular basis. 
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3. Board of Directors
3.1 Members of the Board of Directors
Charles Gebhard

Charles Gebhard has been Chairman of the mobilezone Group’s board of directors since 2001. after 
training for a career in banking, he held various positions in private banks and in the financial sector 
before becoming Chief executive and member of the executive Committee at Jacobs suchard aG 
in 1975, a position he held until 1990. subsequently, he held executive positions and was member 
of the board of directors at Klaus J. Jacobs aG, adecco aG, and barry Callebaut aG. since 1997 
Charles Gebhard has been working as management consultant. he is a member of the board of 
directors of bobst Group sa (President), hugo boss (switzerland) aG, and Koller auktionen aG.

ruedi baer

ruedi baer has been a member of the mobilezone Group’s board of directors since 2001, and since 
2008 he has been Vice President of the board of directors. after completing his education at a 
commercial college, ruedi baer was co-owner and CeO of Color labor aG for four years before he 
became founder and CeO of the interdiscount Group from 1970 to 1996. subsequently, he worked 
as management consultant with mandates for the Porst-Group and Jelmoli-Group, among others. 
in 1999 ruedi baer, together with Martin lehmann, founded the mobilezone Group and until 2007 
he was the board of directors delegate and CeO for the mobilezone Group. he is President of the 
administrative board of destination Travel aG Köniz, aP Fashion aG, eyezone ag, b + b beratungs 
aG as well as of the supervisory board of borussia dortmund Gmbh & Co. KGaa. ruedi baer holds 
a position as permanent lecturer at the Zurich college for business and administration, the hWZ 
hochschule für Wirtschaft und Verwaltung.

WalTer heuTsChi

Walter heutschi has been a member of the mobilezone Group’s board of directors since 2001. he 
is a graduate in engineering and business administration and worked as special systems manager 
for PTT businesses from 1973 to 1995, where he was in charge of developing the NaTel mobile net-
works C and d. subsequently, he became manager of swisscom mobile. Following a management 
buyout, Walter heutschi has been President of the supervisory board of Comfone (international 
roaming operations) since 2000. Walter heutschi is member of the supervisory board and CeO of 
Togewa holding aG and member of the supervisory board of monzoon networks aG.

MiChael KlOTer

Michael Kloter has been a member of the mobilezone Group’s board of directors since 2001. he is 
an attorney-at-law and owner of the law offices Kloter attorneys-at-law in Zollikon (business law). 
Michael Kloter is member of the board of directors of aCMh limited, Cayman islands, of hansa 
Group aG, Münster/Germany (supervisory board) as well as of argo Group limited, isle of Man. 

haNs-ulriCh lehMaNN

hans-ulrich lehmann has been a member of the mobilezone Group’s board of directors since 2001. 
after his business training, he worked as accountant and financial manager in various companies. 
From 1989 to 1991 he was managing director of Forbo stamfloor aG in eglisau and subsequently 
managing director of autronic ag in dübendorf. since 1996 he has been the owner of lehmann 
holding aG. hans-ulrich lehmann is member of the board of directors of autronic ag, of mobile 
solutions ag, of mobiletouch ag, of monzoon networks ag, and of immoplaza ag.

Charles Gebhard ruedi baer hans-ulrich lehmannMichael KloterWalter heutschi
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ruedi baer was CeO until June 30, 2007, and chairman of mobilezone Group’s management as 
well as the delegate of mobilezone Group’s board of directors until december 31, 2007. Currently, 
no other members of the board of directors hold executive positions in the Group’s companies, 
nor have they held such positions during the past three years. during the past year, ruedi baer 
and hans-ulrich lehmann had business relationships with some of the Group’s companies through 
companies they controlled (see explanation in Note 23 to the consolidated financial statement). 
Michael Kloter is owner of the law firm Kloter attorneys-at-law, which has provided legal consul-
tation to mobilezone Group on various matters in the reporting year (see also paragraph 5.7 of this 
section).

3.2 Other activities and vested interests
information about other activities and vested interests of the members of the board of directors can 
be viewed at http://www.mobilezoneholding.ch/index.php?lang=en&cat=5&subcat=1. 

3.3 Cross-involvement 
There is no cross-involvement with the boards of other companies listed on the stock exchange.

3.4 Elections and terms of office
The board of directors is elected individually by the General Meeting of shareholders for a one-year 
term. unlimited reelection is possible.

3.5 Internal organizational structure
Charles Gebhard is Chairman and ruedi baer is Vice President of the board of directors. Michael 
Kloter is secretary of the board of directors. The board of directors meets as often as required 
by business but at least three times a year. in the past year five meetings were held; usually they 
lasted half a day. in addition to the CeO, usually one other member of the management attends 
the meetings. in exceptional cases, external consultants are called in for consultation on specific 
questions.

3.6 Audit Committee 
at its meeting on august 21, 2008, the board of directors formed an audit Committee. The fol-
lowing non-executive members of the board of directors make up the audit Committee: Michael 
Kloter as the committee’s president and ruedi baer and Charles Gebhard as committee members. 
among the audit Committee’s principal tasks is supporting the board of directors in discharging 
its supervisory duties, in particular in supervising and checking the financial reporting, compliance 
with legal and internal regulations, the internal control system and risk assessment, the indepen-
dence and performance of the external auditors. 

3.7 Definition of areas of responsibility 
To the extent allowed by law, the board of directors has delegated managerial functions to the 
Group management. The breakdown of tasks and competencies is established in the bylaws and 
rules of organization. They can be viewed at any time at http://www.mobilezoneholding.ch/media/
Organizational_regulations.pdf. 

3.8 Information and Control instruments vis-à-vis the Group management
each member of the board of directors has the right to be informed about the course of business by 
the Group management, even outside of official meetings, and this includes the right to be informed 
about individual transactions. The information and control tools the board of directors uses vis-à-vis 
the Group management include the following: 

Consolidated budget (annual) •	
Quarterly reports with budget comparison•	
Profit and loss forecast (beginning in the 3rd quarter) •	
sales statistics (in every meeting)•	
12-months financial projections (in every meeting)•	
detailed oral reports of the Group management on the course of business (in every meeting).•	

Corporate Governance
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4. Group management
4.1 Members of the Group management
MarTiN lehMaNN

since July 2007 Martin lehmann has been the CeO of the mobilezone Group. after his business 
training, he held various positions in accounting and sales. in 1993 he became head of the sales 
department and member of the management of autronic ag in dübendorf. From 1998 to 1999 he 
was managing director of mobile solutions ag. until 2007 Martin lehmann was co-founder, head of 
the sales department and member of the management of mobilezone Group. in 2008 he received an 
advanced education diploma from the university in st. Gallen (hsG st. Gallen).

MarKus berNhard (siNCe aPril 1, 2007) 

Markus bernhard has been the mobilezone Group’s CFO since 2007.  Following his graduation from 
the university st. Gallen (hsG st. Gallen) with a degree in economics, he received his diploma as 
certified public accountant. From 1991 to 1997 he worked as auditor at revisuisse Price Water-
house aG in Zurich. he was CFO of Cope inc. in rotkreuz until 2000 and subsequently was CFO of 
Mount10 holding aG, also in rotkreuz. Markus bernhard is a member of the board of directors of 
Novavisions aG in rotkreuz and is on the audit committee of the municipality of risch. 

WerNer WaldburGer

Werner Waldburger has been the mobilezone Group’s COO since 1999. Following his apprentice-
ship as radio and television electrician, he graduated from the commercial college and passed the 
advanced examinations in retailing. he held various positions in sales, both in the office and in the 
field before working as head of Consumer electronics Purchasing at dipl. ing. Fust aG from 1989 
to 1999. 

diNO di FrONZO (siNCe JulY 1, 2007) 

dino di Fronzo has been the mobilezone Group’s sales director since 2007. Following his apprenti-
ceship as technical businessman, he continued his education and received diplomas as marketing 
planner and business economist. in 1990 he began working as Product Manager at abb Nieder-
spannungssystem aG in baden before moving on in 1992 to the position of sales Manager at le-
grand schweiz aG in birr. From 1996 to 1999 he was Manager Profit Center M-electronics at Migros 
Genossenschaft aare. subsequently, he managed various marketing and sales departments in the 
Migros Genossenschaftsbund.

FriTZ hauser (siNCe JulY 1, 2007) 

Fritz hauser has been the mobilezone Group’s CiO since 2007. he completed an electronics en-
gineer apprenticeship before continuing his education and receiving diplomas as technical busi-
nessman and certified computer scientist. From 1991 to 1994 he managed the iT support of an iT  
distributor. subsequently, he worked as Product Manager iT before coming to mobile solutions ag 
in 1997 as Project Manager. in 1999 he worked first as Product Manager and one year later became 
Manager information Technology at mobilezone ag. 

4.2 Other activities and vested interests
information about other activities and vested interests of the members of the board of directors can 
be viewed at http://www.mobilezoneholding.ch/index.php?lang=en&cat=5&subcat=1. 

4.3 Management contracts
There are no management contracts regarding the transfer of managerial functions to third parties.

Martin lehmann
CeO

Markus bernhard
CFO

Fritz hauser
CiO

dino di Fronzo
sales director

Werner Waldburger
COO
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5. Compensations, shareholdings, and loans
5.1 Content and method of determining the compensation and the shareholding programs
The members of the board of directors receive compensation independent of profit in an amount 
set annually by the board of directors. in addition, the board of directors may each year resolve to 
award a bonus in the case of positive business development. The board of directors determines the 
compensation of Group management at the request of the CeO. The board of directors determines 
the CeO’s total compensation. The total compensation of the CeO and the Group management 
consists of a base salary and a bonus depending on profits; this bonus may amount to as much as 
about 100% of the base salary. The bonus depends on the operating profit per ebiTda calculation. 
There are no profit-sharing programs. Further information on compensations is provided in Note 4 
to the financial statement of mobilezone holding ag on page 60. No severance payments were made 
to parting members of any governing bodies in the reporting year. 

5.2 Compensation of former members of governing bodies
No compensation was paid to former members of governing bodies.

5.3 Share allotment in the reporting year
No shares were allocated to members of governing bodies or parties closely linked to them.

5.5 Share ownership
share ownership information is provided in Note 5 to the financial statement of mobilezone holding 
ag on page 61.

5.6 Options
as of december 31, 2008, there were no options.

5.7 Additional fees and remunerations
in fiscal year 2008, the law firm Kloter rechtsanwälte aG, in which the board member Michael 
Kloter is the owner, invoiced the Group’s companies for fees totaling ChF 86,000 (2007: ChF 
113,000).

5.8 Loans granted to governing bodies
There are no loans or securities for loans to the members of the board and management, or to par-
ties closely linked to them.

5.9 Highest total compensation
in the reporting year, the highest total compensation in the amount of ChF 575,000 (2007: ChF 
946,000) was paid to the CeO. No shares or options were allocated to these persons in the reporting 
year.

6. Shareholders’ participation
6.1 Restrictions on voting rights and representation
There are no restrictions on voting rights, and the rules in the articles of association regarding parti-
cipation in the General Meeting of shareholders do not deviate from those mandated by law. 

6.2 Statutory quorums
There are no statutory voting quorums that deviate from those mandated by law.

6.3 Convocation of the General Meeting of Shareholders
There are no statutory rules on convening the General Meeting of shareholders that deviate from 
those mandated by law.

6.4 Agenda
shareholders representing shares with a par value of ChF 35,000 may ask to have a subject for 
discussion entered on the agenda for the General Meeting. Convening the meeting and setting its 
agenda must be requested in writing, and the item for discussion as well as the proposals and mo-
tions must be named in the written request. There are no deadlines.

6.5 Inscriptions into the share register
Not applicable, as only bearer shares exist.
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7. Changes of control and defense measures
7.1 Obligation to make an offer
The opting-out regulation was revoked at the Group’s General Meeting in april 2007.

7.2 Clauses regarding changes of control
There are no change-of-control clauses.
 

8. Auditor
8.1 Duration of the mandate and term of office of the lead auditor
since fiscal year 2007, ernst & Young aG has been the auditor of mobilezone holding ag and all its 
Group companies. The auditor is chosen annually at the General Meeting. The lead auditor, Michael 
bugs, was in charge of the audit mandate for the first time for the 2007 consolidated financial state-
ments.

8.2 Auditing fees
The auditing fees for ernst & Young aG for the reporting year amount to ChF 123,000 (2007: 
ChF 122,000). 

8.3 Additional fees
in the past year, ernst & Young aG did not invoice the Group for any additional fees for business 
consulting.

8.4 Supervisory and control instruments pertaining to the audit
at least once per year the audit Committee attends ernst & Young aG’s concluding discussion of 
the Group audit. The auditor reports the findings from the audit in a report to the audit Committee 
and the board of directors.

9. Information policy
every year the mobilezone Group publishes an annual and a semi-annual report pursuant to iFrs 
(international Financial reporting standards) rules. additional information on important changes and 
essential business activities is published on an ad-hoc basis. all information, including publication 
dates and a list of contact addresses, is available at www.mobilezoneholding.ch under the headings 
“Financial reports,” “Media/Press room,” “Calendar,” and “Contacts.” anyone who wishes to re-
ceive mobilezone’s media information automatically can register under the heading “Media/Press 
room” at the link for “email service.”
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Consolidated
income statement
January 1 to December 31 (CHF 000) Notes 2008 2007

Net sales 1 318,030 320,912

Other operating income 92 141
Cost of goods and materials –223,072 –242,007
Personnel costs 2 –37,241 –33,524
Other operating costs 3 –16,537 –13,133
Operating profit (EBITDA) 41,272 32,389

Depreciation of property, plant & equipment 7 –3,663 –2,747
Amortization of intangible assets 8 –9,550 –6,648
Operating profit (EBIT) 28,059 22,994

Financial income 4 813 868
Financial expense 5 –637 –415
Profit before taxes 28,235 23,447

Income tax expense 6 –5,340 –4,568
Net profit 22,895 18,879

Minority interest 0 81
Shareholders› interest 22,895 18,798

CHF CHF
Earnings per share 15 0.64 0.53
Earnings per share – diluted 15 0.64 0.53
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Consolidated balance sheet

as of December 31 (CHF 000) Notes 2008 2007

Assets
Property, plant & equipment 7 10,645 9,356
Intangible assets 8 7,798 8,677
Goodwill 8 5,753 4,356
Deferred tax assets 6 745 246
Securities 10 116 110
Other accounts receivable 13 565 129
Fixed assets 25,622 22,874

Inventories 11 20,917 31,907
Trade accounts receivable 12 27,360 23,325
Other accounts receivable 13 6,618 11,378
Cash & cash equivalents 14 23,936 19,438
Current assets 78,831 86,048

Total assets 104,453 108,922

Liabilities and shareholders’ equity
Share capital 15 358 358
Additional paid-in capital (share premium) 9,738 9,784
Retained earnings 61,964 50,874
Shareholders› equity 72,060 61,016

Deferred income tax liabilities 6 2,136 2,199
Long-term liabilities 2,136 2,199

Trade accounts payable 16,540 31,654
Current tax liabilities 4,050 2,312
Current provisions 16 100 100
Other current liabilities 17 9,567 11,641
Current liabilities 30,257 45,707

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 104,453 108,922
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Consolidated cash flow
statement 
January 1 to December 31 (CHF 000) Notes 2008 2007

Profit before income taxes 28,235 23,447
Adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flow:

Non-cash transactions
Interest income and expenses, net –343 –155
Depreciation & amortization 7, 8 13,213 9,395
Changes in value adjustments, net –120 879
Employee benefit plans, IAS 19 18 –466 0

Working capital adjustments
Trade accounts receivable –3,357 6,922
Other accounts receivable 5,411 –7,104
Inventories 10,564 –7,086
Trade accounts payable –15,813 7,082
Other current liabilities –2,143 5,998

Income taxes paid –4,348 –6,400
Other income not involving the movement of funds 0 –118
Net cash from operating activities 30,833 32,860

Acquisitions of 
property, plant & equipment 7 –5,223 –5,432
intangible assets 8 –5,999 –9,466
subsidiaries, liquid assets deducted 9 –3,936 –6,227

Proceeds from disposals of
property, plant & equipment 7 275 49
securities in fixed assets 49 1,830

Interest received 388 198
Net cash from investing activities –14,446 –19,048

Interest paid –38 –39
Purchase of treasury shares –215 –6
Sale of treasury shares 169 6
Dividends paid –11,805 –10,732
Net cash from financing activities –11,889 –10,771

Net increase/decrease in cash & cash equivalents 4,498 3,041
Cash & cash equivalents at January 1 19,438 16,397
Cash & cash equivalents at December 31 14 23,936 19,438
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Consolidated statement
of changes in equity 
Movements of shareholders Share  Additional Retained Minorities Total
equity (CHF 000) capital paid-in capital earnings

At December 31, 2006 358 9,784 42,808 0 52,950
Net profit 18,798 81 18,879
Change in minority interest –81 –81
Purchase of treasury shares –6 –6
Sale of treasury shares 6 6
Dividends paid –10,732 –10,732
At December 31, 2007 358 9,784 50,874 0 61,016
Net profit 22,895 22,895
Purchase of treasury shares –215 –215
Sale of treasury shares 169 169
Dividends paid –11,805 –11,805
At December 31,  2008 358 9,738 61,964 0 72,060

As of December 31, 2008, the line item “Retained Earnings” includes legally required reserves in the 
amount of CHF 1,766,000 (December 31, 2007: CHF 1,648,000); it is required that they not be distributed. 
These reserves were established based on the legal requirements of the Swiss Code of Obligations.

As of December 31, 2008, mobilezone holding ag owned 7,972 (December 31, 2007: 100) treasury sha-
res at a value of CHF 54,000. In 2008, a profit of CHF 8,000 (2007: CHF 1,000) was achieved with the 
purchase and sale of treasury shares, which was recognized directly in the equity capital. 

No other profits were posted directly to the equity capital. 

Additional information regarding the share capital is provided in Note 15. 
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Segment information

Notes to the financial
statements 

Income statement (CHF 000) Total mobilezone Group Trade Service Providing Unallocated / Eliminations

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

Net sales revenues with third parties 318,030 320,912 293,293 301,676 24,737 19,236 0 0
Net sales revenues with other segments 0 0 3,112 6,955 1,590 1,752 –4,702 –8,707
Net sales 318,030 320,912 296,405 308,631 26,327 20,988 –4,702 –8,707

Other operating income 92 141 3,071 1,748 0 0 –2,979 –1,607
Cost of goods and materials –223,072 –242,007 –215,404 –240,388 –12,159 –10,144 4,491 8,525
Personnel costs –37,241 –33,524 –37,397 –32,358 –2,375 –1,213 2,531 47
Other operating costs –16,537 –13,133 –16,923 –13,551 –1,887 –1,337 2,273 1,755

Operating profit (EBITDA) 41,272 32,389 29,752 24,082 9,906 8,294 1,614 13

Depreciation of property, plant & equipment –3,663 –2,747 –3,462 –2,680 –201 –67 0 0
Amortization of intangible assets –9,550 –6,648 –1,533 –902 –8,017 –5,746 0 0
Operating profit  (EBIT) 28,059 22,994 24,757 20,500 1,688 2,481 1,614 13

Balance sheet (CHF 000)

Fixed assets 25,622 22,874 22,006 18,469 5,336 7,421 –1,720 –3,016
Current assets 78,831 86,048 62,269 70,176 7,096 7,625 9,466 8,247
Total assets 104,453 108,922 84,275 88,645 12,432 15,046 7,746 5,231

Liabilities 32,393 47,906 41,906 52,391 11,185 11,468 –20,698 –15,953

Investments in property, plant & equipment and intangible assets 11,222 14,898 8,158 5,397 3,064 9,501 0 0

The segment reporting format corresponds to the divisions and the management structure of the Group. 
The segment Trade consists of mobilezone ag, mobilezone business ag, Telepoint AG, and Europea 
Trade AG. The segment Service Providing consists of mobilezone com ag, mobilezone crm ag, and mo-
bilezone net ag. 

Except for the trading activities in the segment Trade, which realized gross sales in the EU market of 
CHF 7.6 million in 2008 (previous year: CHF 21.8 million), the segment operations are limited exclusively 
to Switzerland. 
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Income statement (CHF 000) Total mobilezone Group Trade Service Providing Unallocated / Eliminations

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

Net sales revenues with third parties 318,030 320,912 293,293 301,676 24,737 19,236 0 0
Net sales revenues with other segments 0 0 3,112 6,955 1,590 1,752 –4,702 –8,707
Net sales 318,030 320,912 296,405 308,631 26,327 20,988 –4,702 –8,707

Other operating income 92 141 3,071 1,748 0 0 –2,979 –1,607
Cost of goods and materials –223,072 –242,007 –215,404 –240,388 –12,159 –10,144 4,491 8,525
Personnel costs –37,241 –33,524 –37,397 –32,358 –2,375 –1,213 2,531 47
Other operating costs –16,537 –13,133 –16,923 –13,551 –1,887 –1,337 2,273 1,755

Operating profit (EBITDA) 41,272 32,389 29,752 24,082 9,906 8,294 1,614 13

Depreciation of property, plant & equipment –3,663 –2,747 –3,462 –2,680 –201 –67 0 0
Amortization of intangible assets –9,550 –6,648 –1,533 –902 –8,017 –5,746 0 0
Operating profit  (EBIT) 28,059 22,994 24,757 20,500 1,688 2,481 1,614 13

Balance sheet (CHF 000)

Fixed assets 25,622 22,874 22,006 18,469 5,336 7,421 –1,720 –3,016
Current assets 78,831 86,048 62,269 70,176 7,096 7,625 9,466 8,247
Total assets 104,453 108,922 84,275 88,645 12,432 15,046 7,746 5,231

Liabilities 32,393 47,906 41,906 52,391 11,185 11,468 –20,698 –15,953

Investments in property, plant & equipment and intangible assets 11,222 14,898 8,158 5,397 3,064 9,501 0 0
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Principles of Group accounting 
Corporate information 
The mobilezone Group (hereinafter: mobilezone) conducts business in the area of mobile and fixed-
line telecommunications. Its core activity is in the trade segment with mobilezone ag, which was 
established in May 1999 and has 131 outlets in all larger Swiss cities and towns, and mobilezone 
business ag, which as an independent service provider focuses on business clients. The business 
model of mobilezone is based on agreements with the providers active in Switzerland. They pay 
mobilezone for finding new customers and for renewing contracts with existing customers. These 
commissions allow mobilezone to provide its customers with mobile telephones at very low prices 
or even at no charge. For the first six months of 2008 Europea Trade AG was active in the wholesale 
business. Since July 2008 Europea Trade AG has been responsible for purchasing for mobilezone. 
Telepoint AG, which conducts e-commerce activities, completes the Group’s trade segment. The 
segment Service Providing consists of the companies mobilezone com ag, mobilezone net ag, and 
mobilezone crm ag. As service providers without networks of their own, they offer customers fixed-
line and mobile telecommunications services and products. The services are based on the network 
capacities of the companies Colt Telecom AG (fixed-line) and Orange Communications SA (mobile). 
The parent company of the mobilezone Group is mobilezone holding ag, Riedthofstrasse 124, 8105 
Regensdorf /Switzerland. The company is listed on the SIX Swiss Exchange: Ticker MOB / Valor no. 
1 258 340. 

1. Important Principles of accounting 
1.1 Principles of balance sheet preparation
The consolidated financial statements of mobilezone provide a true and fair picture of its financial 
position, the results of operations, and cash flows in accordance with the International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRS) and comply with Swiss law. They have been prepared on a historical 
cost basis, except for derivative financial instruments and marketable securities; these are traded 
in regular organized markets and are listed at fair market value. The reporting currency is the Swiss 
franc (CHF).

1.2 Changes in accounting and assessment methods 
In fiscal year 2008, the following guidelines, adjustments, and interpretations took effect for 
mobilezone: 

IFRIC 11  Group and Treasury Share Transactions. The interpretation is concerned with the  •
accounting of share-based payment agreements in accordance with IFRS 2. 

IFRIC 12 Service Concession /License Agreements •
IFRIC 14  • Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements, and their Interaction 

Amendments to IAS 39, to IFRIC 9, and to IFRS 7 regarding: 
reclassification of financial assets  •
disclosure of reclassified financial assets, •
disclosure of debt instruments •
reassessment of Embedded Derivatives •

The additional disclosure obligations did not require any further adjustments or disclosures on the 
part of mobilezone. 

The following new or amended Guidelines (IAS/IFRS) or Interpretations (IFRIC) will become effective 
for the reporting years beginning on or after July 1, 2008, or at a later date as indicated below. They 
will have no effects on mobilezone’s net assets, financial position, and results of operations but will 
result, to the extent they are applicable to mobilezone, in additional or adjusted disclosures.
 

IAS 23  Capitalization of Borrowing Costs (January 1, 2009)  •
IFRS 8  Operating Segments (January 1, 2009)  •
IFRIC 13  Customer Loyalty Programs (July 1, 2008)  •
IFRIC 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate (January 1, 2009)  •
IFRIC 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation (October 1, 2008)  •
IFRIC 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners (July 1, 2009)  •

Financial report • Financial statements mobilezone Group 
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IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements, amended (January 1, 2009)  •
IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of IFRS  (January 1, 2009)  •
IFRS 2 Share-based Payment: Vesting Conditions and Cancellations (January 1, 2009)  •
IFRS 3 Business Mergers (July 1, 2009)  •
IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate (Non-Consolidated) Financial Statements (July 1, 2009)  •
IAS 32  Callable Financial Instruments: Presentation  – Obligations in the Case of Liquidation  •

(January 1, 2009) 
IAS 39  Financial Instruments – Recognition and Measurement: Underlying Transactions  •

Qualifying for Hedge Accounting (July 1, 2009) 
Other IFRS improvements (January 1, 2009)  •

1.3 Principles of consolidation 
Scope of consolidation 
The consolidated financial statements of mobilezone include the financial statements of mobilezo-
ne holding ag and all the subsidiaries it controls directly or indirectly by majority of votes or other 
means. The scope of consolidation is explained in Note 2 on page 58 of the financial statements of 
mobilezone holding ag. Those entities are fully consolidated. Assets and liabilities, as well as income 
and expenses, are incorporated 100% on the basis of the method of full consolidation. 

Investments and joint ventures where mobilezone exerts significant influence but which it does not 
control are recognized on the balance sheet on the basis of the equity method and stated under the 
item “Investments in associated companies.” The share in the net profits of associated companies is 
stated separately in the income statement. Significant balances and transactions with investments 
and joint ventures that are recognized according to the equity method are disclosed as items relating 
to associated companies.

Capital consolidation is based on the purchase method, whereby the acquisition cost of subsidi-
aries is offset at the time of acquisition against the fair market value of the net assets acquired, 
determined according to uniform corporate valuation principles. Companies acquired or disposed 
of during the year are consolidated as of the date of acquisition and deconsolidated as of the date 
of disposal. 

All accounts payable to, accounts receivable from, and income and expenses between the compa-
nies included in the consolidation are eliminated. Intercompany paper profits within the Group are 
also eliminated upon consolidation.

Segment information 
The segment reporting format reflects the structure of the mobilezone Group. The assets as well as 
the liabilities include all balance sheet items that can be directly allocated to a segment. 

The Trade segment consists of the companies mobilezone ag, mobilezone business ag, Telepoint 
AG, and Europea Trade AG. The segment Service Providing consists of the companies mobilezone 
com ag, mobilezone net ag, and mobilezone crm ag. 

1.4 Principles of recognition and valuation 
Foreign currency translation
The consolidated financial statements are prepared in Swiss francs. The reporting currency of all 
Group companies is the Swiss franc. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign cur-
rencies are translated using the exchange rate effective on the balance sheet date. Gains or losses 
arising from transactions and foreign currency translations of balance sheet items are included in 
the current year’s income statement.

Financial assets 
mobilezone classifies its financial assets according to the following categories: 

Financial assets affecting net income at fair value  •
Loans and receivables  •
Financial assets available for sale •

Classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. The manage-
ment makes the pertinent decision at acquisition and reviews the allocation in question on each 
balance sheet date.

Notes to the financial statements 
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Financial assets affecting net income at fair value 
This category contains two subcategories: “Financial assets held for trading purposes” and those 
initially instituted as “affecting net income at fair value.” A financial asset is allocated to one of the-
se subcategories if it has been acquired with a view to sale in the short term. Derivatives are also 
classified as being held for trading purposes, unless they are being held for hedging purposes in 
accordance with IAS 39. Assets in this category are classified as current assets.

Loans and receivables 
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that 
are not listed on any stock exchange. They arise when mobilezone directly makes money, goods, or 
services available to a debtor and does not intend to trade with the receivable. Receivables from sa-
les of services and products are valued at their nominal value, less the necessary value adjustments 
for receivables at risk. The nominal value corresponds roughly to the market value. With the excep-
tion of values maturing more than twelve months after the balance sheet date, they are included in 
the current assets. The former are classified as fixed assets.

Financial assets available for sale
Financial assets available for sale are non-derivative assets that, as a result of a management deci-
sion, are available for sale or do not belong to any of the other categories. They are included in the 
fixed assets, unless the management intends to sell them within twelve months after the balance 
sheet date. 

Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized in the financial statements as of the date of 
the transaction. This is the date on which mobilezone commits itself to the purchase or sale of the 
asset in question. The assets are initially recognized at fair value, plus transaction costs for all finan-
cial assets that are not recognized as “affecting the net income at fair value.” The financial assets 
are deleted from the accounts as soon as the rights to receive cash flows from them have expired 
or have been transferred and mobilezone has essentially transferred all risks and advantages from 
their possession. 

Financial assets available for sale and financial assets “affecting the net income at fair value” are va-
lued and recognized at fair value. The fair value of the financial assets available for sale and financial 
assets “affecting the net income at fair value” that are traded in organized markets is determined by 
the market price (buying rate) listed on the balance sheet date. In the case of non-listed securities, 
the fair value is determined by means of the discounted cash-flow method or at historical cost, less 
any necessary value adjustments.

Loans and receivables are recognized at the depreciated initial cost by means of the effective inte-
rest method.

Realized and unrealized profits and losses that result from changes in the fair value of financial as-
sets “affecting the net income at fair value” are recognized in the income statement for the period 
in which they arise. Unrealized profits and losses that result from changes in the fair value of invest-
ments in the category “financial assets available for sale” are included in the shareholders’ equity. If 
these are sold or significant value reductions occur, then the accumulated fair value alterations are 
reclassified from shareholder equity to the income statement.

Property, plant, and equipment 
Property, plant, and equipment are stated at historical cost or manufacturing cost less accumulated 
depreciation. Depreciation is charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis on the basis 
of the following estimated useful lives of items of property, plant, and equipment: 

Office equipment and furniture including EDP  2 to 5 years  •
Shop equipment      5 to 8 years  •
Vehicles       3 to 5 years  •

Intangible assets 
Acquired rights, such as contracts with clients, lessors, suppliers, and similar rights that generate 
financial earnings, are capitalized and amortized over the contractual or estimated useful life of usu-
ally 5 years. The business segment Service Providing grants a discount on the purchase price of a 
mobile telephone to new customers signing up for a mobile telephone subscription. The difference 
between the cost and the (reduced) selling price of the mobile telephone is capitalized as customer 
acquisition cost and will be depreciated on a straight-line basis over the term of the subscription 
concerned (generally 24 months). The acquisition costs for fixed-line customers are capitalized and 
will be depreciated over a term of 24 months (2007: 36 months).

Financial report • Financial statements mobilezone Group 



39

Goodwill
Companies are consolidated as of the date of acquisition. In all company mergers, the recognizab-
le assets, liabilities, and contingent liabilities are revaluated at their market values and integrated 
according to the purchase method. Moreover, assets that originate in either a contractual or a legal 
right or that can be separated from the business and whose market value can be reliably determined 
are entered separately in the income statement as intangible assets. These assets are essentially cli-
ent lists. The remaining goodwill will not be depreciated but will be tested annually for impairment. 

In accordance with the method of push-down accounting, goodwill with respect to intangible assets 
is transferred to those cash-generating units that can be expected to profit from the acquisition or 
to generate future cash flow from it.

Impairment 
Goodwill items and other intangible assets with an indefinite useful life undergo the annual impair-
ment test during the course of the fourth quarter. The “discounted cash flow” model that is used for 
the impairment test to calculate fair value depends on a number of factors. These include estimates 
of future cash flow, discount rates, and other variable factors. The basis here is provided by the 
forecast figures for the reporting year as well as the medium-term planning over four more years. 
Important assumptions and evaluations are necessary to arrive at these estimates. Factors such 
as volumes, selling prices, sales growth, gross margin, labor and operating expenses as well as 
investments in plant and equipment, market conditions, and other economic factors are based on 
assumptions the management views as realistic. Impairment of goodwill is immediately entered as 
depreciation in the income statement and is not re-appreciated in the following periods. The value of 
plant and equipment and other assets, including intangible assets, is always subject to review when, 
due to events or changed circumstances, an overvaluation of the book values appears possible. If 
the book value exceeds the realizable value, then it is subject to a special depreciation to the value 
that appears recoverable on the basis of the discounted, expected future revenue surpluses (free 
cash flows).

Treasury shares 
Treasury shares are included in the shareholders’ equity at historical acquisition cost. Any profits 
and losses from transactions with treasury shares are treated as not affecting net income and are 
set off against capital reserves. 

Inventories
Inventories are stated at cost or net realizable value, whichever is lower. The cost of inventories is 
calculated using the weighted average cost method. Goods with longer storage periods are subject 
to appropriate value adjustments. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary 
course of business, less selling expenses. The price of a mobile phone is determined based on 
whether the product is sold on a stand-alone basis or in conjunction with a provider subscription. 
Net realizable value therefore takes into account both components. In addition, price protection 
arrangements with suppliers are also taken into account in determining the need for any value ad-
justments.

Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, current credit bank balances, and current de-
posits with original maturity of less than three months. Cash and cash equivalents are treated as 
affecting net income and are stated at fair market value. 

Current financial liabilities 
Current financial liabilities include trade and other current accounts payable and are stated at de-
preciated historical cost.

Provisions for liabilities and contingencies 
Provisions are set aside for current or future legal or de-facto obligations when, on the balance sheet 
date, as a result of past events, reasonable estimates regarding the future transfer of economic valu-
es are possible and when such a transfer is likely. The provisions are determined based on the best 
possible estimate of the expected expenditures. In cases of considerable importance, provisions are 
determined by discounting the expected future cash flow on the balance sheet date at a rate that 
reflects current market rates and assessments of the risks specific to the liability. 

Contingent liabilities are stated in the Notes if a future obligation is possible or if a present obligation 
exists, but an outflow of funds is not probable or the amount cannot be reliably determined. 

Notes to the financial statements 
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Leasing
Payments made under operating leases are recognized in the income statement on a straight-line 
basis over the term of the lease. Lease incentives are recognized in the income statement as a re-
duction of total lease expenditure. Revenue-based and other contingent leases are accrued on an 
estimated basis. 

Leasing agreements are recognized in the balance sheet when, upon conclusion of the agreement, 
the majority of significant risks and rewards of ownership devolve to the Group (Financial Leasing). 
Lease payments are divided according to the annuity method into interest and principal payments. 
Leased assets are depreciated over the lower of either the lease term or the estimated useful life. 

Pension benefits 
The pension benefit expenses and liabilities are calculated periodically by an actuary using the pro-
jected unit credit method. The defined benefit obligations are determined on the basis of the cash 
value of the estimated future cash flows. In this case, the interest rate for federal obligations plus a 
risk premium in Swiss francs are used. The plan assets are estimated and stated at fair value. Any 
profits or losses arising from adjustments to figures based on actuarial calculations are included 
over the average remaining service period of the insured employees in the income statement if they 
exceed ten percent of the higher amount of the pension contributions and the plan assets at the 
beginning of the reporting year. 

Revenues 
Net sales include all revenues from the sale of goods and services, less reductions in earnings, re-
bates, discounts, VAT, and write-offs of trade accounts receivable. Revenues from the sale of goods 
are included in the income statement when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been 
transferred to the buyer. One-time commissions from providers are recognized upon conclusion of 
the contract. Recurring airtime profit-sharing commissions are based on the subscribers’ monthly 
payments of mobile telephone bills to the providers. These amounts are recorded in the income 
statement based on the providers’ invoices on an accrual basis.

Income tax 
Current income taxes are calculated based on the taxable income of the year and are recorded in the 
income statement. Deferred income taxes are calculated using the balance sheet liability method on 
any temporary differences arising from divergences between the book value of assets and liabilities 
for financial reporting purposes and the value used for tax purposes. Deferred tax is calculated using 
tax rates enacted or substantially enacted on the balance sheet date and will be offset in future tax 
periods. Deferred tax loss carry-forwards and deferred earnings tax credits are activated only to the 
extent that it is probable that they will be realized in the future. 

2. Estimates and discretionary decisions 
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires evaluations, assumptions, 
and estimates that influence the items in the financial statements as of the balance sheet date. The-
se evaluations, assumptions, and estimates are based on empirical values and other factors that are 
considered adequate under the given conditions.

The actual results may deviate from these estimates. The estimates and the assumptions based 
on them are subject to continuous revision. Changes to estimates that affect the annual financial 
statements are included in the reporting period in which the estimate was revised or, alternatively, in 
future reporting periods if they are affected by the revised estimates.

Intangible assets /Goodwill 
For acquisitions, the fair value of acquired intangible assets is estimated. The acquired intangible 
assets have a finite useful life and are therefore depreciated. Any residual value (difference between 
the purchase price and acquired net assets) represents goodwill. Goodwill has an indeterminate 
useful life and is not depreciated; however, it is subject to annual review for possible impairment. 
The estimates regarding intangible assets and goodwill therefore affect write-offs. Furthermore, va-
rious assumptions are made when testing goodwill for impairment that require medium-term and 
long-term estimates. This concerns both internal planning data (cash flow, growth rates, etc.) as well 
as external parameters (discounts). 
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Deferred tax obligations 
Active deferred taxes are calculated primarily on the basis of temporary differences and, in indivi-
dual cases, also on the basis of loss carry-forwards, in as far as realization seems probable. The 
recoverability therefore depends on whether future prognoses concerning the relevant tax object 
materialize over a period of several years. Should these future prognoses prove to be incorrect, 
then this could lead to value impairment. 

Retirement benefits 
In accordance with the IFRS, the pension plan agreements of the mobilezone Group qualify as a 
defined benefit. This status is based on actuarial assumptions, some of them long-term, that may 
deviate from reality. Actuarial differences above the so-called 10-percent corridor are amortized over 
the average remaining period of service of the employees. Both the determined status as well as 
the amortization of a difference contain estimated values that may affect the company’s position in 
regard to assets and revenue.

3. Type and scope of financial risks 
3.1 Financial risk management 
The financial instruments of mobilezone Group predominantly include cash and cash equivalents to 
provide sufficient funds for the business activities of the Group companies. The Group has various 
other financial instruments at its disposal, such as trade accounts payable and receivable resulting 
directly from business activities. The main risks arising from these financial instruments include 
liquidity risk and risk of loss of receivables. Regarding other financial assets, such as securities and 
other receivables, the maximum financial risk in the event of a failure of the counterparty corres-
ponds to the book value of these instruments. In the fiscal years ending on December 31, 2008, and 
December 31, 2007, the mobilezone Group did not use any hedge accounting. 

3.2 Foreign currency risk 
The revenues in the retail business and in the service providing business are all denominated in 
Swiss francs. Approximately 50% (2007: 56%) of purchases in the retail business in 2008 were de-
nominated in Euro. The currency volatilities of the Euro have no significant impact on mobilezone’s 
operating profits and shareholders’ equity. The Group decided generally not to hedge against the 
currency risk on purchases due to the short-term nature of payments in Euro (7–14 days) and the 
high inventory turnover. In the reporting year, the Group used only a few future exchange transac-
tions with a short maturity. As of the balance sheet date, any open contracts are valued at fair market 
value with any changes in fair market value recognized in the income statement. As of December 31, 
2008, or December 31, 2007, there were no open future exchange transactions.

3.3 Credit risk/ risk of loss of receivables 
The Group is exposed to credit risks arising from its ordinary business activity. Due to the peculia-
rities of this business sector – a large portion of retail sales is made in cash – the business activity 
results in relatively few outstanding accounts receivable, compared to total sales. As the number 
of network operators in Switzerland is limited by law, these accounts receivable in the segment 
Trade are due from only a small number of counterparties. In 2008, 63% of the net sales revenue 
was achieved with the three largest clients (network operators). The company meets this risk by ne-
gotiating short terms of payment. The significantly higher risk of loss of receivables in the segment 
Service Providing is counteracted by the mobilezone Group by means of predetermined hedging 
strategies, such as appraisal of creditworthiness and the sale of the overdue receivables to a debt 
collection agency. Limiting and controlling the outstanding receivables also minimize risk. Current 
bank credit balances and deposits are held exclusively at financial institutions with a high degree of 
creditworthiness. This risk of default is also minimized by maintaining business relationships with 
several banks and other financial institutions and by continuously monitoring the credit risk. 

3.4 Interest rate risk 
As there are currently no bank loans, current bank liabilities, and other interest-bearing liabilities, 
there is no interest rate risk. 

3.5 Liquidity risk 
Currently, mobilezone Group bears no liquidity risk as its financial position features a large amount 
of cash and cash equivalents. Furthermore, there are sufficient credit lines (CHF 10 million) to satisfy 
peak demands on net current assets. 

Notes to the financial statements 
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3.6 Investment control 
The primary objective of mobilezone Group’s investment control is to ensure that the Group main-
tains a high degree of creditworthiness and an advantageous proportion of shareholders’ equity in 
order to support its business activities. Capital includes the shareholder’s equity items capital stock, 
capital reserves (agio), and retained earnings. For the purposes of adjusting or maintaining its capital 
structure, the Group may adjust dividend distributions to shareholders, issue new shares, or borrow 
capital. As of December 31, 2008, or December 31, 2007, no changes were made to the objectives 
and guidelines. 
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Notes to the
consolidated income statement

1

2

3

4

5

Net sales (CHF 000) 2008 2007
Sales mobile communication products 108,362 131,537
One-time commissions and recurring
«airtime» profit-sharing from providers 185,816 171,672
Revenue from mobile and fixed-net subscriptions 23,852 17,703
Total net sales 318,030 320,912

Personnel costs (CHF 000) 2008 2007
Wages and salaries 33,359 29,759
Social security costs 2,569 2,422
Pension costs 590 815
Other personnel costs 723 528
Total personnel costs 37,241 33,524

In the reporting year the pension costs include a reduction of CHF 466,000 (2007: CHF 0)
resulting from applying IAS 19.

Number of full-time employees as of December 31 542 453

Other operating costs (CHF 000) 2008 2007
Operating lease costs 9,408 8,536
Marketing 21,792 17,989
Repair & maintenance, general and administrative costs 8,480 6,976
less: contributions received from third parties –23,143 –20,368
Total other operating costs 16,537 13,133

Marketing costs are essentially covered through cost contributions and location contributions from busi-
ness partners; the same applies to operating lease costs, though to a lesser extent.  

Other financial income (CHF 000) 2008 2007
Interest 381 192
Foreign exchange differences 432 676
Total financial income 813 868

Financial expense (CHF 000) 2008 2007
Interest 38 37
Bank commissions and foreign exchange differences 599 378
Total financial expense 637 415

As in the previous year, in the reporting year there were no financial debts outstanding as of December 31.
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6 Income tax expense (CHF 000) 2008 2007
Current income taxes 5,902 4,373
Deferred income taxes –562 195
Total income tax 5,340 4,568

For fiscal year 2007, the deferred income taxes include positive deferred income taxes in the amount of 
CHF 88,000 from acquisitions, which were used in that same fiscal year.

Current income taxes are based solely on the profit in the reporting year. Deferred income taxes are 
based solely on the changes in temporary differences and the recognition of future tax loss carry-for-
wards. Taxes on capital are included under “Other operating costs.”

Income tax  reconciliation (CHF 000) 2008 2007
Profit before taxes 28,235 23,447
Average applicable tax 19.61% 20.19%
Expected tax expense 5,538 4,734

Impact on tax expense from
effect of previously unrecognized tax losses now utilized 0 –231
effect of tax rate changes –198 65

Effective income tax expense 5,340 4,568

The average tax rate is the weighted average of the tax rates of the individual Group companies and can 
thus vary slightly from one year to the next. 

Deferred tax assets (CHF 000) 2008 2007
Intangible assets 14 18
Inventories 9 10
Tax benefits from loss carry-forwards 722 218
Total deferred tax assets 745 246

In the previous year loss carry-forwards of CHF 231,000, which had not been recognized previously and 
the future benefit of which had been uncertain, were set off against taxable profits of fiscal year 2007. 
There are no other unrecognized loss carry-forwards. 

The amount of CHF 655,000 of the recognized loss carry-forwards relate to mobilezone net ag, which is 
still in the start-up phase. Based on the available realistic budget figures, it is likely that these loss carry-
forwards can be offset with the next few years.

Deferred tax liabilities (CHF 000) 2008 2007
Inventories 1,464 1,974
Trade accounts receivable 553 204
Other receivables 98 0
Provisions 21 21
Total deferred tax liabilities 2,136 2,199

As in the previous year, no taxes on earnings were recognized directly in shareholders’ equity. 
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Notes to the consolidated balance sheet

7 Poperty, plant & equipment (CHF 000) Shop equipment Other property & Total
plant equipment

Acquisition costs
At December 31, 2006 13,918 2,507 16,425
Additions 4,284 1,148 5,432
Change in scope of consolidation 379 483 862
Disposals –600 –152 –752
At December 31, 2007 17,981 3,986 21,967
Additions 4,575 648 5,223
Change in scope of consolidation 0 4 4
Disposals –335 –702 –1,037
At December 31, 2008 22,221 3,936 26,157

Accumulated depreciation
At December 31, 2006 8,460 1,772 10,232
Additions 2,112 635 2,747
Change in scope of consolidation 142 193 335
Disposals –600 –103 –703
At December 31, 2007 10,114 2,497 12,611
Additions 2,901 762 3,663
Change in scope of consolidation 0 0 0
Disposals –252 –510 –762
At December 31, 2008 12,763 2,749 15,512

Book value
At December 31, 2007 7,867 1,489 9,356
At December 31, 2008 9,458 1,187 10,645

2008 2007
Fire insurance value of property, plant & equipment 12,000 12,000
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8 Intangible assets (CHF 000) Customer acqui- Acquired shop Goodwill Total
sition costs location

Cost
At December 31, 2006 5,762 5,626 0 11,388
Additions 9,028 438 0 9,466
Changes in scope of consolidation 471 650 4,356 5,477
Disposals –2,179 –83 0 –2,262
At December 31, 2007 13,082 6,631 4,356 24,069
Additions 5,994 5 0 5,999
Changes in scope of consolidation 2,672 0 1,397 4,069
Disposals –1,921 –52 0 –1,973
At December 31,  2008 19,827 6,584 5,753 32,164

Accumulated  amortization
At December 31, 2006 3,124 3,435 0 6,559
Additions 5,832 816 0 6,648
Changes in scope of consolidation 91 0 0 91
Disposals –2,179 –83 0 –2,262
At December 31, 2007 6,868 4,168 0 11,036
Additions 8,753 797 0 9,550
Changes in scope of consolidation 0 0 0 0
Disposals –1,921 –52 0 –1,973
At December 31,  2008 13,700 4,913 0 18,613

Book value
At December 31, 2007 6,214 2,463 4,356 13,033
At December 31,  2008 6,127 1,671 5,753 13,551

Testing good will for impairment
In accordance with IAS 36, goodwill is to be tested for impairment at least once a year, and if there are 
any indications at any time of impairment, such a test is to be carried out immediately.  At mobilezo-
ne Group, the annual test for impairment is carried out in the course of the fourth quarter. The test of 
goodwill is done for each cash-generating unit (CGU) on the basis of utility value calculations. The uti-
lity value corresponds to the cash value of the discounted cash flow. In this case, the forecast estima-
tes for 2008 and the planning data for the years 2009–2012 were used. The assumptions used in the 
calculations correspond to the average long-term expected growth rates of the operating business in 
the relevant CGU. For the impairment tests, the growth in sales and operating result (EBIT) are decisi-
ve. Even if zero growth formed the basis for the cash-flow prognoses per CGU, the book value would 
not exceed the calculated utility values. Even an increase of the discount rate by two percentage 
points would not result in the book value of the goodwill per CGU exceeding the calculated utility valu-
es in question. 

The gross profit margin in the planning period is based on empirical figures. The “risk-free” interest 
rate of long-term government bonds serves as the basis of the pre-tax discount rate, which is increa-
sed in the case of specific market and product risks. The growth rate of the planning period is calcula-
ted on the basis of medium-term planning. 

The value of the growing perpetuity at the end of the planning period (terminal value) is calculated 
on the basis of a growth rate of 1% and discounted as of the date of evaluation. On the basis of the 
company values calculated using the DCF method, mobilezone does not have to undertake any value 
adjustments for the goodwill items.
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9

(CHF 000)
Cash & cash equivalents 2,264
Trade accounts receivable 56
Other accounts receivable 23
Inventories 75
Accruals 627
Property, plant & equipment 4
Financial assets 25
Total assets 3,074

Trade accounts payable 697
Other accounts payable 150
Deferrals 96
Total liabilities 943

Net assets 2,131

Purchase price 6,200
Acquired cash & cash equivalents –2,264
Net outflow of funds 3,936

Purchase price 6,200
Capitalization of customers –2,672
Net assets –2,131
Goodwill 1,397

The goodwill consists of asset values that cannot be separately identified or reliably determined and of 
synergies that can be achieved with mobilezone Group’s existing business areas. 

The share of the consolidated profit contributed by the company acquired in the reporting year amounted 
to CHF –591,000. 

Acquisitions
The following acquisition was made in fiscal year 2008:

Company Date Shares
Tojaco Trading GmbH, Urnäsch March 2008 100%

The purpose of the company is trade and providing services of all kinds in the area of 
telecommunications to business customers.

The following assets and liabilities were taken over as a result of the acquisition of Tojaco Trading GmbH:

Goodwill 2008 (CHF 000) Trade Trade Service Providing Total
Shops B2B Fixed-line

Book value Goodwill 3,047 1,792 914 5,753
Discount rate 9.6% 9.6% 9.6%
Sales growth forecast/anticipated 5.4% 29.5% 16.5%
Sales growth Terminal Value 1.0% 1.0% 1.0%

Goodwill 2007 (CHF 000)
Book value Goodwill 3,047 395 914 4,356
Discount rate 10.0% 10.0% 10.0%
Sales growth  forecast/anticipated 4.5% 22.3% 6.0%
Sales growth  Terminal Value 1.0% 1.0% 1.0%

Goodwill can be assigned to the following CGU: 

For its relatively new business segment of company clients (CGU Trade – B2B) mobilezone anticipates an 
average growth of 29.5 percent in the coming years. 
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Company Date Shares
Amel CCD SA, Regensdorf January 2007 100%
Telepoint AG, Kriens January 2007 70%
mobilezone crm ag, Geneva January 2007 100%

Company Date Shares
Telepoint AG, Kriens October 2007 30%
mobilezone business ag, Regensdorf October 2007 30%

The following acquisitions were made in fiscal year 2007:

In fiscal year 2007 the following Minority shares were acquired:

Amel CCD SA 
Amel CCD SA specializes in the sale of mobile phones and mobile phone subscriptions and is active in 
the Ticino. In June 2008, Amel CCD SA was merged with mobilezone ag. 

Telepoint AG 
Telepoint AG is active in the B2B business, primarily with SMEs, and works in the area of e-commerce. 

mobilezone crm ag (formerly SabreTek SA) 
mobilezone crm ag (formerly Sabre Tek SA) operates call centers with a focus on the telecom sector. 
Since the takeover, the company has been engaged in customer acquisition for the mobilezone Group. 

The following assets and liabilities were taken over as a result of the acquisitions: 

The goodwill consists of asset values that cannot be separately identified or reliably determined and of 
synergies that can be achieved with mobilezone Group’s existing business areas.

In the previous year the share of the consolidated profit contributed by the companies acquired amoun-
ted to CHF 802,000. 

(CHF 000) Amel CCD SA Telepoint AG mobilezone crm ag Total

Cash & cash equivalents 274 –429 63 –92
Trade accounts receivable 863 815 2 1,680
Other accounts receivable 13 91 14 118
Inventories 0 525 0 525
Accruals 17 22 1 40
Property, plant & equipment  227 100 200 527
Intangible assets 0 120 0 120
Financial assets 130 3 0 133
Total assets 1,524 1,247 280 3,051

Trade accounts payable 1,001 652 5 1,658
Other accounts payable 140 286 162 588
Deferrals 56 44 26 126
Total liabilities & shareholders equity 1,197 982 193 2,372

Net assets 327 265 87 679

Purchase price 3,839 656 989 5,484
Transaction costs 35 19 12 66
Acquired cash & cash equivalents –274 429 –63 92
Net outflow of funds 2006 –34 0 0 –34
Net outflow of funds 3,566 1,104 938 5,608

Purchase price 3,839 656 989 5,484
Transaction costs 35 19 12 66
Capitalization of locations/customers –500 –410 0 –910
Net assets –327 –265 –87 –679
Goodwill 3,047 0 914 3,961
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Inventories (CHF 000) 2008 2007
Inventories, gross 22,882 33,371
less valuation adjustments –1,965 –1,464
Total Inventories 20,917 31,907

The gross value of inventories carried at fair value less costs to sell amounted to CHF 4,509,000 
(2007: CHF 8,546,000). In the reporting year value adjustments in the costs of goods and  
materials were made in the amount of CHF 501,000 (2007: CHF 799,000).

Trade accounts receivable (CHF 000) 2008 2007
Accounts receivable, gross 27,692 24,278
less valuation adjustments –332 –953
Total Trade accounts receivable 27,360 23,325

As of December 31, 2008, deductions in the amount of CHF 332,000 (2007: CHF 953,000) were made 
from the value of trade accounts receivable. 

Trade accounts receivable are interest-free and are usually payable within 30 days. 

As of December 31, 2008, receivables in the amount of CHF 22.2 million (2007: CHF 17.0 million) were 
outstanding from the company’s three biggest customers (network operators).  

As of December 31, 2008, mobilezone Group’s accounts receivable amounted to CHF 27.7 million (2007: 
CHF 23.3 million), of which CHF 0.6 million (2007: CHF 2.8 million) are due and not subject to value adjust-
ments. In terms of maturity, this balance of overdue receivables breaks down as follows: CHF 0.4 million 
(2007: CHF 2.3 million) due within 30 days, CHF 0.1 million (2007: CHF 0.2 million) due in 31 to 60 days, 
CHF 0.1 million (2007: CHF 0. 2 million) due in 61 to 120 days, and none (2007: CHF 0.1 million) due in 
more than 120 days.

Other accounts receivable (CHF 000) 2008 2007
Accruals 6,205 10,996
Other accounts receivable 978 511
less: long-term accounts receivable –565 –129
Total other accounts receivable (current) 6,618 11,378

Value adjustments (CHF 000) 2008 2007

At January 1 953 873
Additions from acquisitons 5 38
Allocations  2,305 3,011
Usage –2,578 –2,860
Dissolutions –353 –109
At December 31 332 953

Securities 
The shares not listed are valued at amortized cost of CHF 116,000 (2007: CHF 110,000) less necessary 
valuation adjustments. 

Notes to the financial statements 

Telepoint AG mobilezone Total
business ag

Purchase price 134 466 600
Acquisition costs 19 0 19
Net outflow of funds 153 466 619

Purchase price 134 466 600
Acquisition costs 19 0 19
Minority capital –113 –30 –143
Minority after-tax profit 2007 –40 –41 –81
Goodwill 0 395 395
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Current provisions (CHF 000) 2008 2007
At January 1 100 100
Used 0 0
Additions 0 0
At December 31 100 100

The current provisions are intended to cover expected warranty claims from the sale of mobile phones. 

Other current liabilities (CHF 000) 2008 2007
Deferrals

Wages and salaries 2,423 2,327
Social security costs 175 341
Other 2,656 3,929

Other liabilities 
VAT 2,986 2,309
Social security costs 977 930
Employee benefit plan costs 0 114
Other 350 1,691

Total other current liabilities 9,567 11,641

Share capital (bearer shares at CHF 0.01 par value) Anzahl

Number of shares issued at January 1, 2007 35,772,996
less treasury shares:
held for trading purposes –100
Number of shares outstanding at December 31, 2007 35,772,896
less treasury shares:
held for trading purposes –7 972
Number of shares outstanding at December 31, 2008 35,765,024

The treasury shares do not have any dividend or voting rights at the annual general meeting.
All other shares are equally entitled to dividends and voting.

Details regarding treasury shares and contingent and authorized capital are in included in Note 3 to the 
financial statements of mobilezone holding ag on page 59.

Calculation of earnings per share 2008 2007
Consolidated net profit CHF 22,895,380 18,879,227
Weighted average number of shares outstanding Pieces 35,765,740 35,772,996
Earnings per share CHF 0.64 0.53

Consolidated net profit CHF 22,895,380 18,879,227
Weighted average number of outstanding Pieces 35,765,740 35,772,996
and potential shares
Earnings per share– diluted CHF 0.64 0.53

14 Cash & cash equivalents (CHF 000) 2008 2007
Cash on hand and current bank balances 23,936 19,438
Total cash & cash equivalents 23,936 19,438

Cash & cash equivalents are not subject to any restrictions on disposal. The Group has unutilized lines 
of credit in the amount of CHF 10 million.
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The basic assumptions relevant for the calculations were determined as follows: 

The changes to the cash value of the liabilities are represented as follows: 

Employee benefit plans 
The mobilezone Group has several pension plans, which contain insurance agreements and which have 
been prepared for the majority of employees for the period after retirement. The pension plans qualify as 
defined benefit plans in accordance with IAS 19. The obligations and the assets to cover them are exami-
ned and re-valuated at least once a year by an independent expert (actuary). 

The changes to the current market value of the planning assets are represented as follows: 

Amounts recognized in the balance sheet: 

Composition of retirement benefit plan expenses: 

2008 2007
Discount interest rate 3.0% 3.5%
Expected yield on investment 2.5% 2.5%
Expected wage growth bis 1% bis 1.5%

(CHF 000) 2008 2007
Employee benefit obligations as of January 1 9,132 7,380
Current service cost 705 537
Interest expense 331 268
Employee contributions 1,003 701
Actuarial losses 2,173 402
Additions from coverage capital invalidity 2,382 0
Additions from acquisitions 1,048 0
Benefits paid –1382 –156
Employee benefit obligations as of December 31 15,392 9,132

(CHF 000) 2008 2007
Cash value of plan assets as of January 1 9,316 7,734
Expected yield from plan assets 255 210
Additions from coverage capital invalidity 2,382 0
Actuarial profits 20 66
Employer contributions 1,148 761
Employee contributions 1,003 701
Additions from acquisitions 938 0
Benefits paid –1382 –156
Cash value of plan assets as of December 31 13,790 9,316

(CHF 000) 2008 2007
Cash value of the defined benefit plan obligation as of December 31 15,392 9,132
Cash value of plan assets as of December 31 13,790 9,316
Deficit (Surplus) 1,602 –184

Balance of the actuarial profits or losses not yet posted –2,068 85
Value adjustments (IAS 19 § 58b) 0 99
Asset from retirement benefit plan –466 0

(CHF 000) 2008 2007
Current service cost 705 537
Interest expense 331 268
Expected yield from plan assets –255 –210
Effects of ceiling on value adjustments (IAS 19 § 58b) –99 99
Total retirement benefit plan expenses 682 694

Actual yield from plan assets 275 276

Notes to the financial statements 

The expected estimated employer contributions for the fiscal year 2009 amount to CHF 1.4 million. 
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19 Financial instruments  
The financial assets and liabilities can be assigned to the following categories:  

Due to their short-term maturity, the book values of the financial instruments correspond roughly to their 
market value.

The difference to the book values in the balance sheet items other accounts receivable and other current 
liabilities concern, above all, deferrals and expenses that are not financial instruments according to IFRS. 
Both these figures were incorrectly stated in the previous year and have been adjusted accordingly in this 
table.

The plan assets are concerned exclusively with asset values as a component of the insurance solutions.
 
Data for the current reporting period and the three previous reporting periods: 

2008 2007 2006 2005

Cash value of benefit obligations 15,392 9,132 7,380 7,797
Cash value of plan assets –13,790 –9,316 –7,734 –6,661
Deficit/(Surplus) 1,602 –184 –354 1,136

Empirical value adjustment to benefit obligations –659 –402 1,387 –753
Empirical value adjustment to plan assets 20 66 222 286

2008 Loans and Financial assets Financial liabilities 
(CHF 000) Receivables available stated at 
Book value for sale amortized 

cost
Assets
Securities 0 116 0
Other accounts receivable 94 0 0
Trade accounts receivable 27,360 0 0
Cash & cash equivalents 23,936 0 0
Liabilities
Trade accounts payable 16,540
Other current accounts payable 350
Total 51,390 116 16,890

2007 Loans and Financial assets Financial liabilities 
(CHF 000) Receivables available stated at 
Book value for sale amortized 

cost
Assets
Securities 0 110 0
Other accounts receivable 230 0 0
Trade accounts receivable 23,325 0 0
Cash & cash equivalents 19,438 0 0
Liabilities
Trade accounts payable 31,654
Other current accounts payable 1,691
Total 42,993 110 33,345
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22 Contingent liabilities and future commitments, capital commitments, and restrictions of ownership
As of December 31, 2008, and December 31, 2007, no items had to be reported under this heading. 

In the reporting year the amount of CHF 9,408,000 was recognized as an expense from operating lea-
ses in the income statement (2007: CHF 8,536,000). These expenses included revenue-based rents, 
less the minimum rent, amounting to CHF 51,000 (2007: CHF 103,000). 

The expected lease income from sublease agreements amounts to CHF 357,000 (2007: CHF 618,000). 

2007
(CHF 000) Shops Other Total 2007
Less than 1 year 8,409 0 8,409
Between 1 and 5 years 18,910 0 18,910
More than 5 years 4,978 0 4,978
Total 32,297 0 32,297

Notes to the financial statements 

21 Operative leasing 
As of December 31, 2008, the mobilezone Group operated 131 shops all across Switzerland, all of which 
were leased. Leases typically have a fixed term of 5 years, with an option to renew for several years. 

As of the balance sheet date, future payments for shops and other long-term contracts with a fixed term 
are coming due as follows: 

2008
(CHF 000) Shops Other Total 2008
Less than 1 year 9,583 250 9,833
Between 1 and 5 years 23,918 395 24,313
More than 5 years 5,441 0 5,441
Total 38,942 645 39,587

20 Maturity profile of financial obligations
All financial obligations of mobilezone are payable within one year. mobilezone has no interest-bearing 
obligations. 
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Relationships with related parties and companies 
Related parties are members of the Board of Directors, Group Management, their close relatives, and key 
shareholders, including companies controlled by them. 

Hans-Ulrich Lehmann, a member of the Board of Directors, and Ruedi Baer, Vice-President of the Board 
of Directors, are the owners of Immoplaza AG. This company rents the central warehouse and the admi-
nistrative building in Regensdorf to mobilezone ag. Hans-Ulrich Lehmann is the owner of Autronic AG, 
Mobiletouch AG, Mobile Solutions AG, and Monzoon Networks AG. Samtel AG was merged with Autronic 
AG. Autronic AG is a distributor of mobile telephones in Switzerland and supplies mobilezone ag with 
Samsung mobile phones in particular. Mobile Solutions AG develops content for mobile phone applica-
tions. Mobiletouch AG repairs mobile telephones. Moonzoon Networks AG is a provider of public wire-
less Internet access and services. Mobiletouch AG and Monzoon Networks AG are listed as associated 
companies for the first time in the reporting year. The information mistakenly not disclosed in the previous 
year has been adjusted accordingly. Michael Kloter is a member of the Board of Directors of mobilezone 
holding ag. All transactions take place at market values.

Events following the balance sheet date 
There have been no events that are required to be disclosed here.

On March 2, 2009, the Board of Directors approved these consolidated financial statements for publica-
tion. They are still subject to approval by the General Meeting on April 7, 2009. 

Cash compensations paid to and shares held by the members of the Board of Directors and of the Group 
Management are detailed in the Notes to the annual financial statements of mobilezone holding ag on 
pages 60 and 61. 

The shares in mobilezone holding ag are broadly distributed. Significant shareholders are listed in the No-
tes to the financial statements of mobilezone holding ag on page 59. 

Transactions and balances with related parties 2008 2007
and companies (CHF 000)
Service revenue from Autronic AG/Samtel AG 377 343
Service revenue from Monzoon Networks AG 6 8
Service revenue from Mobile Solutions AG 156 180
Service revenue from Mobiletouch AG 142 159
Purchases from Autronic AG 27,804 24,808
Purchases from Mobiletouch AG 1,153 882
Operating lease expenses to Immoplaza AG 413 320
Service expenses to Kloter Rechtsanwälte AG 86 113
Service expenses to Monzoon Networks AG 1 0
Accounts receivable from Autronic AG/Samtel AG 101 0
Accounts receivable from Mobiletouch AG 39 21
Accounts payable to Autronic AG 4,818 2,971
Accounts payable to Kloter Rechtsanwälte AG 43 3
Accounts payable to Mobile Solutions AG 4 8
Accounts payable to Mobiletouch AG 77 88
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Report of the
statutory auditors
Report of the statutory auditor on the consolidated financial statements
to the General Meeting of mobilezone holding ag, Regensdorf
As statutory auditor, we have audited the consolidated financial statements of mobilezone holding 
ag, which comprise the balance sheet, income statement, cash flow statement, statement of chan-
ges in equity and notes for the year ended 31 December 2008, as presented on pages 30 to 54 of 
this report.

Board of Directors’ responsibility
The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated 
financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and the 
requirements of Swiss law. This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining an 
internal control system relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. The Board of Di-
rectors is further responsible for selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies and making 
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances. 

Auditor’s responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our 
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Swiss law and Swiss Auditing Standards and 
International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material 
misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclo-
sures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated fi-
nancial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers the internal control system relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s 
internal control system. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting po-
licies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the consolidated financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2008 give a 
true and fair view of the financial position, the results of operations and the cash flows in accordance 
with IFRS and comply with Swiss law.

Report on other legal requirements
We confirm that we meet the legal requirements on licensing according to the Auditor Over-sight Act 
(AOA) and independence (article 728 CO and article 11 AOA) and that there are no circumstances 
incompatible with our independence.

In accordance with article 728a paragraph 1 item 3 CO and Swiss Auditing Standard 890, we con-
firm that an internal control system exists, which has been designed for the preparation of consoli-
dated financial statements according to the instructions of the Board of Directors.

We recommend that the consolidated financial statements submitted to you be approved.

Ernst & Young Ltd

Daniel Wüst  Michael Bugs
Licensed audit expert  Licensed audit expert
  (Auditor in charge)

Zurich, 2 March 2009
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Income statement 

January 1 to December 31 (CHF 000) 2008 2007

Financial income 18,308 53,829
Income from services provided and other income 1,732 1,633
Total income 20,040 55,462

Administrative expenses 866 1,713
Financial expenses 86 134
Total expenses 952 1,847

Net profit 19,088 53,615



57

Balance sheet before approp-
riation of available earnings
As of December 31 (CHF 000) Notes 2008 2007

Assets
Cash & cash equivalents 10,603 11,041
Treasury shares 54 1
Accounts receivable from 

third parties 75 15
Group companies 23,011 19,485

Current assets 33,743 30,542

Investments 2 36,568 33,031
Securities 116 110
Fixed assets 36,684 33,141

Total assets 70,427 63,683

Liabilities & shareholders› equity
Current accounts payable to 

third parties 558 855
Group companies 369 615

Accruals and deferrals 462 457
Current liabilities 1,389 1,927

Share capital 3 358 358
General reserves 131 131
Reserve for own shares 3 54 1
Free reserves 6,008 6,062
Available earnings

Balance brought forward 43,399 1,589
Net profit 19,088 53,615

Shareholders› equity 69,038 61,756

Total liabilities & shareholders› equity 70,427 63,683
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Notes to the
financial statements 

1

2

Contingent liabilities/claims subject 12/31/2008 12/31/2007
Subordination to mobilezone net ag 3,000,000 1,000,000
Joint and several liability from VAT - Group taxation p.m. p.m.

Except for the comments that follow, there are no further facts that require disclosure in accordance with 
Art. 663b OR. 

mobilezone international ag was merged with mobilezone com ag in October 2007. 
AMEL CCD, SA was merged with mobilezone ag in June 2008. 

C = fully consolidated 

Scope of consolidation and significant investments Investment held Paid-in capital Consolidation
in subsidiaries and associates % (CH 000)
mobilezone ag, Regensdorf 100 2,850 C
Europea Trade AG, Urnäsch 100 100 C
mobilezone net ag, Regensdorf 100 500 C
mobilezone com ag, Regensdorf 100 100 C
mobilezone crm ag, Geneva 100 100 C
mobilezone business ag, Urnäsch 100 100 C
Telepoint AG, Kriens 100 300 C
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3 Share capital, authorized and conditional share capital 
As of December 31, 2008, capital stock consists of 35,772,996 bearer shares at a par value of CHF 0.01 
each. As of the balance sheet date, there was authorized share capital in the amount of CHF 30,000 
(2007: CHF 30,000). In addition, as of December 31, 2008, conditional share capital in the amount of 
CHF 132,910 (2007: CHF 132,910) is earmarked for the exercise of employee stock options (up to CHF 
22,910), for the exercise of conversion and option rights relating to debenture loans (up to CHF 100,000), 
and for the exercise of other options (up to CHF 10,000). As in the previous year, there were no options 
outstanding as of the balance sheet date.

Significant shareholders 
As of December 31, 2008, the company knew of the following shareholders controlling 3 percent or more 
of capital/votes of the Group companies: 

in % 2008 2007
Schroders Plc., GB-London 4.7 9.9
Bestinver Gestion SA, E-Madrid n.a. 11.0
Polar Capital LLP,  GB-London n.a. 3.5
Asialand Holding Corp., VG-Tortola 5.1 5.1
Vanguard International Explorer Fund, USA - Wayne 3.3 n.a.
Patinex AG, CH-Wilen 5.3 n.a.
Total 18.4 29.5

Change in number of Number of Maximum Price in CHF Minimum Total
treasury shares bearer shares Ø (CHF 000)

At January 1, 2007 0 0
Purchases at cost 800 7.70 7.51 7.24 6
Disposals at sale prices –700 7.90 7.82 7.73 –6
Write-off of stock price gain 1
At December 31, 2007 100 1

Purchases at cost 30,800 7.35 6.97 6.51 215
Disposals at sale prices –22,928 7.80 7.36 7.00 –170
Write-off of stock price gain 8
At December 31, 2008 7 972 54
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4 Compensation to members of the Fee Fee Pension and Health and Total
Board of Directors and Group Salary Salary social accident  
(CHF 000) fixed variable security Insurance 

contributions contributions
Board of Directors
Charles Gebhard, President 2008 50 45 4 0 99

2007 25 40 3 0 68
Ruedi Baer1 2008 34 40 0 0 74

2007 0 0 0 0 0
Walter Heutschi 2008 30 40 3 0 73

2007 15 35 3 0 53
Michael Kloter 2008 34 40 0 0 74

2007 15 35 3 0 53
Hans-Ulrich Lehmann 2008 30 40 4 0 74

2007 15 35 3 0 53
Total Board of Directors 2008 178 205 11 0 394

2007 70 145 12 0 227

Group Management
Ruedi Baer1 2008 0 0 0 0 0

2007 744 202 0 0 946
Martin Lehmann2 2008 240 248 83 4 575

2007 222 168 44 2 436
Other members of the 2008 756 743 260 13 1,772
Management3 2007 553 409 93 6 1,061
Total Group Management 2008 996 991 343 17 2,347

2007 1,519 779 137 8 2,443

1  Ruedi Baer was CEO of the company until June 30, 2007, and was Delegate of the Board of Directors 
until December 31, 2007. The compensation for his activity as a member of the Board of Directors is 
included in the  compensation for his work as CEO and Delegate of the Board of Directors of the com-
pany for fiscal year 2007. 

2  Martin Lehmann has been CEO of the company since July 1, 2007. He was previously a member of the 
Group management of the company until June 30, 2007. 

3  The Group management of the company was increased from four to five members during fiscal year 
2007. 
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5 Shares held by the Board of Directors and by the Group management

Name Position Year Number of shares
Charles Gebhard President of the Board of Directors 2008 29,600

Member of the Audit Committee 2007 29,600
Ruedi Baer Vice President of the Board of Directors 2008 1,062,000

Member of the Audit Committee 2007 1,062,000
Walter Heutschi Member of the Board of Directors 2008 0

2007 0
Michael Kloter Member of the Board of Directors 2008 26,000

President of the Audit Committee 2007 26,000
Hans-Ulrich Lehmann Member of the Board of Directors 2008 100,000

2007 100,000

Martin Lehmann Chief Executive Officer 2008 1,062,033
2007 1,062,033

Markus Bernhard Chief Financial Officer 2008 18,000
2007 18,000

Dino Di Fronzo Sales Director 2008 0
2007 0

Fritz Hauser Chief Information Officer 2008 0
2007 0

Werner Waldburger Chief Operating Officer 2008 0
2007 0

6 Risk assessment 
As the parent company of the mobilezone Group companies, mobilezone holding ag is deeply involved in 
the risk assessment process across all group companies. The risk assessment process is integrated into 
the Group’s annual strategy process. The aim is not the avoidance of all risk but rather to create options 
that are intended to help the Group companies to consistently take advantage of existing opportunities 
and to increase their business success. Risk management supports the companies in reaching their busi-
ness goals by providing transparency regarding the risk situation (as a basis for strategic and operating 
decisions), by recognizing potential threats to the Group’s net assets, financial position, and results of 
operations, and by taking measures to reduce risks to an acceptable level.

In connection with risk assessment process, the Board of Directors of mobilezone holding ag is kept in-
formed about any observed risks and opportunities. 
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Proposal by
the Board of Directors 
Appropriation of available earnings (CHF 000) 2008 2007

Balance brought forward 43,398,780 1,588,803
Net profit 19,088,179 53,615,066
Available earnings at the disposal of the Annual General Meeting 62,486,959 55,203,869

The proposal of the Board of Directors of mobilezone holding ag to the Annual General Meeting to be 
held on April 7, 2009, is to dispose of the available earnings as follows:

Payment of a dividend of CHF 0.33 11,805,089 11,805,089
(previous year: CHF 0.33) per bearer share entitled to dividends
Payment of an anniversary dividend of CHF 0.10 3,577,299 0
To be carried forward 47,104,571 43,398,780
Total 62,486,959 55,203,869
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Report of the
statutory auditors
Report of the statutory auditor to the General Meeting of mobilezone holding ag, Regensdorf
As statutory auditor, we have audited the financial statements of mobilezone holding ag, which 
comprise the balance sheet, income statement and notes for the year ended 31 December 2008, 
as presented on pages 56 to 62 of this report.

Board of Directors’ responsibility
The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with 
the requirements of Swiss law and the company’s articles of incorporation. This responsibility includes 
designing, implementing and maintaining an internal control system relevant to the preparation of fi-
nancial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. The Board of 
Directors is further responsible for selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies and making 
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances. 

Auditor’s responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with Swiss law and Swiss Auditing Standards. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosu-
res in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, inclu-
ding the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers the internal control system 
relevant to the entity’s preparation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control system.

An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the re-
asonableness of accounting estimates made, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and approp-
riate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2008 comply with Swiss law 
and the company’s articles of incorporation.

Report on other legal requirements
We confirm that we meet the legal requirements on licensing according to the Auditor Over-sight Act 
(AOA) and independence (Art. 728 Code of Obligations (CO) and Art. 11 AOA) and that there are no 
circumstances incompatible with our independence.

In accordance with article 728a paragraph 1 item 3 CO and Swiss Auditing Standard 890, we con-
firm that an internal control system exists, which has been designed for the preparation of financial 
statements according to the instructions of the Board of Directors.

We further confirm that the proposed appropriation of available earnings complies with Swiss law 
and the company’s articles of incorporation. We recommend that the financial statements submitted 
to you be approved.

Ernst & Young Ltd
  
Daniel Wüst Michael Bugs
Licensed audit expert  Licensed audit expert 
 (Auditor in charge)

Zurich, 2 March 2009 
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AArAu  Bahnhofstrasse 11   Aigle  MMM Chablais Centre, Chemin sous le grand Pré 4   Altdorf  lehnplatz 20   ArBon  Zentrum 

novaseta  BAden  Badstrasse 7   BAlernA  Centro Breggia, Via San gottardo 56a   BASel  railCity Basel, güterstrasse 115 

| im Clara-Huus am Claraplatz, Webergasse 34 | gerbergasse 70 | Shopping Center St. Jakob Park, St. Jakob-Strasse 397 | 

freie-Strasse 20 | Steinenvorstadt 2   BellinZonA  Viale Stazione 2   Bern  Waaghaus-Passage 8 | Von Werdt-Passage 3 | 

loeb Warenhaus, Spitalgasse 47–51 | eKZ Westside, gilbert-de-Courgenay-Platz 4   BiASCA  Via lucomagno 17   Biel  Bahn-

hofstrasse 6 | unionsgasse 20 | nidaugasse 18 | Centre Boujean, Zürichstrasse 24   BreMgArten  eKZ Sunne-Märt, Sonnen-

gutstr. 2   Brig  Bahnhofstrasse 4   Brugg  neumarktplatz 5   BuCHS Ag  eKZ Wynecenter, Bresteneggstrasse 9B   BuCHS 

Sg  Bahnhofstrasse 28   BülACH  eKZ Migros Center Bülach-Süd, feldstrasse 85   Bulle grand rue 30   Burgdorf  eKZ 

neumarkt, lyssachstrasse 27   CHur  eKZ City Shop, Quaderstrasse 8   ColloMBey  Centre Commercial, Parc du rhône   

CriSSier  Centre Migros, Chemin de Closalet 7   deléMont  Avenue de la gare 42   dietliKon  eKZ CooP, industriestrasse 28   

eCuBlenS  Centre Commercial ecublens du Croset 1   egerKingen  gäupark, Hausimollstrasse 1   eMMenBrüCKe  eKZ 

emmen-Center   frAuenfeld  eKZ Passage, Bahnhofstrasse 70   friBourg  rue du romont 12 | eKZ fribourg-Centre, 

Avenue de la gare 10   genèVe  Centre Commercial eaux-Vives 2000 | Centre Commercial Planète Charmilles, Promenade de 

l´europe 11 | Centre Commercial les Cygnes, rue des Alpes 22 | rue de rive 10 | rue de Carouge 18 | rue du Mont-Blanc 17 | 

Centre Commercial Balexert, Avenue louis-Casai 27 | thônex Centre Commercial, rue de genève 106 | rue de la Confédération 

3, Bel-Air   genèVe-CArouge  Centre Commercial la Praille, routes des Jeunes 10   glAruS  Schweizerhofstrasse 7   glAtt-

WAlliSellen  glattzentrum   goSSAu Sg  Citypark, St. gallerstrasse 17   grAnCiA  Parco Commerciale grancia   HeiMBerg  

eKZ CooP, Blümlisalpstrasse 61   HinWil  eKZ CooP, Wässeristrasse 38   interlAKen  rugenpark Migros-Center, rugen-

parkstrasse 1   KreuZlingen  Hauptstrasse 49a   KrienS  eKZ Pilatus-Markt, ringstrasse 19   lA CHAux-de-fondS  Avenue 

léopold-robert 33 | Boulevard des eplatures 20 | Centre Commercial les entilles, Avenue léopold-robert 151   lAngentHAl  

Bärenplatz, Marktgasse 12–14   lAuSAnne  rue Haldimand 5 | rue Mauborget 12   loCArno  largo Zorzi 8   lugAno  Pa-

lazzo ransila, Via Pretorio 9   luZern  Kapellgasse 7 | Kramgasse 5 | Pilatusstrasse 7   lySS  Hirschenplatz 1A   MAnno  Via 

Cantonale 43   MArin-ePAgnier  Centre Commercial Manor Marin   MArtigny  Centre Commercial Migros Manoir   MelS  

Pizol Center   Meyrin  Centre Commercial de Meyrin, Avenue de feuillasse 24   Montreux  Centre forum, Place du Marché 6   

MorgeS  grand rue 10   neuCHâtel  rue de Seyon 6 | Centre Commercial la Maladière, rue Pierre-à-Mazel 10   nyon  

Centre Commercial la Combe, rue de la Moràche 6   oftringen  Perry-Center, Bernerstrasse | eKZ A1, Spitalweid 2   olten  

Baslerstrasse 60   PfäffiKon SZ  eKZ Seedamm-Center Passage   rAPPerSWil  obere Bahnhofstrasse 44   regenSdorf  

eKZ regensdorf | riedthofstrasse 124   rorSCHACH  Hauptstrasse 67   SArnen  eKZ MM Sarnen-Center, nelkenstrasse 5   

SCHAffHAuSen  eKZ Herblinger-Markt, Stüdliackerstrasse 10 | Vordergasse 41   SCHönBüHl  Shoppyland, industriestrasse 20   

SCHönBüHl-urtenen  eKZ Coop, Sandstrasse 8   SCHWyZ-iBACH  eKZ Mythen-Center, Mythencenterstrasse 18   Sierre  

noës Centre Commercial   Signy  Centre Commercial, rue de fléchères   Sion  rue de la Porte-neuve 21   SolotHurn  

Marktplatz 45   SPreitenBACH  eKZ Shoppi-tivoli-Center, Mall    St. gAllen  eKZ Shopping Arena, Zürcherstrasse 462 | eKZ 

neumarkt 1 | Multergasse 31   St. MArgretHen  eKZ rheinpark   StAnS  eKZ länderpark, Bitzistrasse 2   SteinHAuSen  

eKZ Zugerland   SurSee  eKZ Surseepark, Bahnhofstrasse 28   tHAlWil  gotthardstrasse 44   tHun  Bälliz 62   Vernier  route 

de Meyrin 171   VeVey  Centre Commercial Midi Coindet, Avenue général-guisan 17 | Centre Commercial St. Antoine, Avenue 

du général-guisan 15   VillArS-Sur-glâne  Centre Commercial MonCor, route de Moncor 1   ViSP  Bahnhofstrasse 2   

VolKetSWil  Volkiland, industriestrasse 1   Weinfelden  Zentrum-Passage 1   Wettingen  Zentrumsplatz, landstrasse 87   

Wil Sg  obere Bahnhofstr. 21   WintertHur  untertor 13   WoHlen  Bahnhofstrasse 5   yVerdon  rue du lac 24   Zug  eKZ 

Metalli, Baarerstrasse 16   ZüriCH  Bellevue, theaterstrasse 12 | eKZ letzipark, Baslerstrasse 50 | löwenstrasse 56 | Stauff-

acherstrasse 35 | Bahnhofstrasse 87 | Sihlcity, Kalanderplatz 1 | City Shopping, löwenstrasse 35   ZüriCH-AltStetten  MMM 

Altstetten, Altstetterstrasse 145   ZüriCH-oerliKon  einkaufszentrum neumarkt, Hofwiesenstrasse 350 
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